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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (/f known) PMYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Kilgore Fort House is a two-story timber structure with gable

roof and rests on a limestone foundation. On the northeast gable end is a
massive stone chimney laid in lime mortar with two insets or splays that
narrow the stone pile in its rise to the stack. The buildings construction
is in the simplest form, being of hewn rectangular timbers, V-notched at

the corners. Originally, structural and defensive strength was enhanced

by a heavy interior timber partition notched into the walls exposing the
ends to the exterior, thus forming two rooms on both floors. This parti-
tion has been removed by sawing the wooden members off at the interior wall
surface. The first, second and attic floor joists are also set into the
structural timbers. The second floor openings are apparently their
original small size, indicating the defensive nature of the building; the
first floor windows existing on the north and west have been enlarged.

The doorways and all window openings are finished by simple framing boards.
The roof presently has rough shingle shakes but is deteriorating. Interior
flooring is missing for the most part on the first floor, but most of the
bvarding remains intact on the second and attic stories. A steep ladder
stair (closed stringers with treaders) remains, linking the first and

second floors, and a ladder leads to the attic level,

s
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Frontier Forts were built to guard mountain gateways, river valleys,
and other strategic points, and also as places of refuge for neighboring
frontiersmen and their families during times of danger. Subsegquent to
Braddock's defeat, Colonel George Washington organized the defense of
Virginia's frontier around a system of such forts stretching the length
of the Valley from the Potomac to North Carolina. While the major danger
of French and Indian invasion passed with the Treaty of Paris (1763) and
the removal of French influence from North America, Indian depredations
remained a reality on the frontier.

The settlement of extreme Southwest Virginia during the last-third of
the eighteenth century followed very closely the standard for frontier
development. The Indians remained an active threat to settlers in this
region during and immediately following the American War for Independence,
The Old Kilgore Fort House was the last of a chain of frontier forts
extending at one time from Castlewood to Cumberland Gap. Built at the
end of the first, more dangerous, generation of settlement on this new
Virginia frontier, the Ki lgore Fort House represents a transitional type
of structure.

By circa 1785-90, strongly-built and fortified houses were taking the
place of the earlier blockhouse and stockaded forts. Robert Kilgore's
Fort House represents this stage in frontier social and architectural
development., Both the lower and upper stories were separated into two
rooms by log partitions built as strongly as the outer walls themselves,
suggesting a defensive strategy with the potential for several last stands.
Although threatened on several occasions, the Kilgore House survived the
last Indian uprising.

Robert Kilgore lived in the old house until his death in 1854 at the |
age of eighty-eight. He was a prominent primitive Baptist minister as '
well as a farmer. He was pastor of Nickelsville Baptist Church for more
than forty years; and his namesake of a later generation left Southwest
Virginia to become an Evangelist of national repute. The Manuscript
census returns for 1850 indicate that Kilgore Fort House was a fairly
prosperous farm in the ante-bellum period. While a younger Robert K ilgore
and his family were operating the farm, the elder Robert lived on in re-
tirement at the house he had built. )

Kilgore Fort House is in advanced structural deterioration due pri-

marily to the breakdown of the mortar in the stone chimmey causing it to
lean downhill and consequently push the upper portion of the building in
that direction. A majority of the timbers, however, are in good condition|

The building is presently the object of an active local movement—te—restore




Form 10-300q UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 3TATE

(July 1969} NATIONAL PARK SERVICE VIRGINIA
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |couNnTY
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM SCOTT
; FOR NPS USE ONLY
(Continuation Sheet) FHTRY NumBER oATE
Page 1
(Number all entries)
S'it as the focal point for a public wayside park. The efforts and pre-

liminary plans by the Tennessee Valley Authority, Lenowisco Planning District
Commission, Scott County Planning Commission, and the Virginia Historic
Landmarks Commission assure that the Kilgore Fort House will be properly
restored and that the recreational and parking areas will not infringe on
the historic aspects of the building. Its picturesque site on a gentle
slope beside Copper Creek lends to the fort house an isolated frontier
quality that will be respected by these plans.

The Ki lgore Fort House is perhaps the oldest building in the county
and even in its present condition, a significant landmark. Indeed, its
importance is national in scope, being one of the few extant structures in
southwestern Virginia that represents the early westward movement into
Kentucky, Tennessee and heyond.
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